
 
 

Downtown Investment Authority  
 Agenda 

 

Wednesday, October 14, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.  

MEMBERS: 
Ron Moody, Chairman      Jim Citrano, Board Member   
Braxton Gillam, Esq, Vice Chairman     Todd Froats, Board Member 
Carol Worsham, Secretary       Craig Gibbs, Esq., Board Member 
William Adams, Esq., Board Member    David Ward, Esq., Board Member  
Oliver Barakat, Board Member        

 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

A. September 16, 2020 Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes 
B. Resolution 2020-10-01: Term Sheet - River City Brewing Company 
C. Resolution 2020-10-02: REV Grant Term Sheet - Doro 

 
IV. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

A. September 16, 2020 Downtown Investment Authority Board Meeting Minutes 
B. Resolution 2020-10-03: Allocation of Development Rights- Doro 
 

V. CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING 
 

VI. CHAIRMAN REPORT 
 

VII. ADJOURN 
 
 

 
 

Interested persons desiring to attend this meeting can only do so via Zoom (including by computer or telephone) using the 
meeting access information on the following page: 

 
 
By Computer 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/97939945116?pwd=L1B1TEpnQmNIQTlzaHZGbU1CSWVmUT09  
 
Meeting ID: 979 3994 5116 
Passcode: 936906 
 
One tap mobile 
+1 (301) 715-8592 (Germantown) 
+13126266799 (Chicago) 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/adeyrXHMvN  

https://zoom.us/j/97939945116?pwd=L1B1TEpnQmNIQTlzaHZGbU1CSWVmUT09
https://zoom.us/u/adeyrXHMvN


TAB III 

COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY 



TAB III.A 

September 16, 2020 Community Redevelopment Agency Meeting Minutes 



 

Downtown Investment Authority 
Zoom Meeting 

 
Wednesday, September 16, 2020 – 2:00 p.m.  

 
Community Redevelopment Agency 

  MEETING MINUTES 
 
DIA Board Members:   Ron Moody, Chairman;  Braxton Gillam, Esq., Vice Chairman; Carol 
Worsham, Secretary; Oliver Barakat; Craig Gibbs, Esq.; David Ward, Esq.; Jim Citrano; Bill 
Adams, Esq. and Todd Froats   
 
DIA Board Members Excused:  
 
Mayor’s Staff:   None 
 
Council Members:  Council Member LeAnna Cumber, District 5  
 
DIA Staff:  Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Development; John 
Crescimbeni, Contract, and Regulatory Compliance Manager; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; 
Lori Radcliffe-Meyers, Redevelopment Coordinator; Ina Mezini, Marketing and Communications 
Specialist; and Karen Underwood-Eiland, Executive Assistant 
 
Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.  
 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

 
Chairman Moody called the CRA Board Meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and provided a statement 
relating to COVID-19.   
 
Chairman Moody read an opening statement regarding authority and procedures for the virtual 
meeting. Ina Mezini, DIA Marketing, and Communications Specialist, provided instruction for the 
public comment process utilizing the Zoom toolbar “raise hand” feature. 
 
Chairman Moody announced each DIA Board Member and staff.   
 
Chairman Moody opened the floor for public comments.  
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
Chairman Moody opened the floor for public comments.  
 
Barbara Goodman commented based on experience as the former superintendent of the Timuquana 
preserve in Fort Caroline regarding the current RFP to develop a park master plan.  
 
Barbara Ketchum, River parks Steering Group.  Support the holistic view of the Riverfront.   
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 2 of 8 

Denise Reagan, Executive Director of the Garden Club, commented that she supports of the 
Riverfront.   
 
Dimitri Demopoulos commented about the Riverfront development plan. 
 
Todd Sack commented is in favor of developing waterfront parks.  
 
Jimmy Orth, Executive Director of St. Johns Riverkeeper, commented about riverfront resiliency.  
 
Ina Mezini read e-mailed comments are on the file below from the following persons about the 
Downtown Riverfront. 
 

• Bruce Fouraker  
• Jim Shorts 
• Bill Snow  
• Brian Paradise  
• Natalie Rosenberg 
• Martha McKean 
• Brooke Andrews  
• Carolyn Antman  
• Dr. Ralph and Jean Parks  
• Laura A D’Alisera  
• Michael Dunlap  
• Gabriel Dempsey  
• Karen McCombs  

 
Ginny Myrick, President and CEO of the Cathedral commented about the three (3) row house 
burdens and requested Oliver Barakat to facilitate a meeting with Bryan Mosier, Director of 
Neighborhoods.   
 
Board Member Barakat stated that he wanted an update a couple of months ago.   His firm is trying 
to market the First Baptist portfolio as well as other real estate brokers.  The DIA board has 
allocated funds toward redevelopment now in the Cathedral district and investing taxpayer dollars. 
The other part of the City is not doing its job. He would like for DIA staff or someone at the 
American Institute of Architects to connect with the City Agencies.  
 
Council Member Cumber will reach out to Brian Moser or Michael Chow to reach out to Ms. 
Myrick.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 3 of 8 

 
III. COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY MEETING   
 
A. AUGUST 19, 2020, APPROVAL OF THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY MEETING REVISED MINUTES 
Motion: Board Member Worsham  
Seconded: Board Member Gillam 
 
Vote:  Aye: 9  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 9-0-0.  
 
B. RESOLUTION 2020-09-01: NORTHBANK CRA BUDGET – UNBUDGETED 

REVENUE   
RESOLUTION 2020 -09-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
ACTING AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD 
OF THE COMBINED NORTHSIDE EAST AND NORTHWEST CRA’S 
RECOMMENDING TO CITY COUNCIL AN AMENDMENT TO THE FY 
2019-2020 TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT (“TID”) BUDGET FOR THE 
COMBINED NORTHSIDE EAST AND NORTHWEST CRA’S TO BUDGET 
AND APPROPRIATE PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGETED REVENUE TO PLAN 
AUTHORIZED PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS PURSUANT TO SEC. 
163.387, F.S.; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

Lori Boyer provided a summary for Resolution 2020-09-01. The Combined Northside East and 
Northwest TID FY 2019-2020 Budget is requested to be amended to appropriate the additional 
revenue currently identified as Proceeds from the Sale of Property, and Investment Pool Earnings, 
including all Investment Pool Earnings through FY year-end, to the projects and programs 
identified on Exhibit A attached hereto.  
 
The DIA staff will be directed to prepare and file legislation with the City Council requesting the 
appropriation of funds following Exhibit A and amending the FY 19-20 approved CRA budget 
accordingly. 
 
The Finance and Budget Committee recommended for approval for the next three (3) bills.  
The committee’s recommendation was to apply the $2,600,000.00 received from the property’s sale 
to the two-way street conversion capital project. Put the remaining amount with the investment pool 
earnings to date plus the investment pool earning the next two months.   
CEO Boyer stated that the DIA is expected to receive another $900,000 in proceeds from the sale of 
the VyStar for the parking garage at Forsyth and Main to cover the construction costs.   



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 4 of 8 

 
The Board discussed Resolution 2020-09-01.   

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-01 as presented. 
Seconded:  Board Member Barakat - Committee recommendations do not need to be 
seconded.  
 
Vote:  Aye:9   Nay: 0  Abstain: 0  
 

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 9-0-0. 
C. RESOLUTION 2020-09-02: SOUTHSIDE CRA BUDGET – UNBUDGETED 

REVENUE  
RESOLUTION 2020-09-02 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
ACTING AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD 
OF THE SOUTHSIDE CRA RECOMMENDING TO CITY COUNCIL AN 
AMENDMENT TO THE FY 2019-2020 TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT 
(“TID”) BUDGET FOR THE SOUTHSIDE CRA IN ORDER TO BUDGET 
AND APPROPRIATE PREVIOUSLY UNBUDGETED REVENUE TO PLAN 
AUTHORIZED PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS PURSUANT TO SEC. 
163.387, F.S.; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CEO Boyer presented Resolution 2020-09-02.  The Southside Tax increment District FY 2019-2020 
Budget is requested to be amended to appropriate the additional revenue currently identified as 
Investment Pool Earnings, with other Investment Pool Earnings earned before fiscal year-end, of 
Future years Financial Obligations and the Plan Authorized project as specified on Exhibit A 
attached hereto. 
 
The DIA staff is now directed to prepare and file legislation with the City Council requesting the 
appropriation of said funds under Exhibit A and amending the FY 19-20 approved CRA budget 
accordingly. 
 
The committee’s recommendation was to apply $110,432.03 to the River place Boulevard capital 
project and apply a portion of the funds so that Public Works can close out that capital project and 
take the remaining balance and use it to future year’s financial obligations.  
 
The Board discussed Resolution 2020-09-02. 
 
Board Member Barakat exited the proceedings at 2:45 p.m.   
 
Board Member Ward asked if the Preston Hollow Capital were on schedule to close on the bonds by 
the end of the month.  CEO Boyer responded no, but they are going to close by the end of the year. 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 5 of 8 

  
Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-02 as presented. 
Seconded: Board Member Citrano - Committee recommendations do not need to be 
seconded. 
 
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 
 

THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0. 
 
D. RESOLUTION 2020-09-03: NORTHBANK CRA BUDGET – AMENDMENT OF 19-

20 BUDGET  
 

RESOLUTION 2020-09-03 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
ACTING AS THE COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY BOARD 
OF THE COMBINED NORTHSIDE EAST AND NORTHWEST CRA’S 
ADOPTING A FY 2019-2020 AMENDED TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT 
(“TID”) BUDGET FOR THE COMBINED NORTHSIDE EAST AND 
NORTHWEST CRA’S PURSUANT TO SEC. 163.387, F.S. AND SEC. 106.341, 
ORDINANCE CODE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CEO Boyer presented Resolution 2020-09-03. The Combined Northside East and Northwest TID 
FY 2019-2020 Budget is amended to transfer the funds currently identified as Unallocated Plan 
Authorized Expenditures together with the surplus amounts in other specific Plan authorized 
Expenditures to the projects and programs identified on Exhibit A attached hereto. 
 
According to Sec. 106.344, Ordinance Code, the DIA staff is now directed to prepare and file a 
CRA Budget Transfer Form effectuating the amendments budget. 
 
The committee’s recommendation was to apply $380,000.00 from North Bank CRA loan is returned 
for future sources and that the $31,988.00 balance go to North Bank Retail Enhancement.  
 
Board Member Froats thanked the staff for cleaning up the significant number of accounts to clean 
up. Do we have the proper sign-offs from the two organizations that they will not make the loans? 
CEO Boyer responded, yes.  
 

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-03, as presented.  
Seconded: No seconded needed   
 
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0.  



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 6 of 8 

 
E. RESOLUTION 2020-09-06: FAÇADE GRANT  

RESOLUTION 2020-09-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
(“DIA”) APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF A FACADE GRANT 
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT 
AUTHORITY (“GRANTOR”) AND HATFIELD & HATFIELD PA 
(“GRANTEE”); AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE DIA TO NEGOTIATE 
THE AGREEMENT; AUTHORIZING THE DIA CEO TO EXECUTE SUCH 
AGREEMENT; AND FINDING THAT THE DEVELOPMENT PLAN IS 
CONSISTENT WITH THE DIA’S BUSINESS INVESTMENT AND 
DEVELOPMENT PLAN (“BID PLAN”) AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
Steve Kelley brought fourth Resolution 2020-09-06.  Façade Grant Program 2020-001 is the DIA’s 
first façade grant program from Hatfield & Hatfield, P.A. located at 210 E. Forsyth Street, 
Jacksonville, Florida  32202. 
 
Grant:  

• $7,370 from the North bank CRA Façade Grant Program 
• The Grant will be funded upon completion of the work.  
• Work shall be inspected for compliance with the application as submitted, and all invoices must be 

submitted for satisfactory review and approval by DIA Staff.    

The Grant approval is contingent upon the following: 
 

1. Only work on the street-facing storefront, as outlined in the application submitted, is 
eligible for reimbursement. 

2. Applicant must be in good standing with the City (no unpaid taxes, Municipal Code 
Compliance outstanding citation on any property of the applicant, outstanding 
defaults on any City contract, or previous uncured grant defaults or non-compliance). 

3. The property is being improved may not have any outstanding liens or violations. 
4. Applicant must not be engaged in an active lawsuit with or have an unresolved claim 

from or against the City or its agencies related to the property from which the grant 
is sought or other similar rehabilitation grants. 

5. Applicant must strive to utilize City approved JSEB's for renovation work associated 
with grant. 

6. Must maintain the improvements in good repair. 
 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 7 of 8 

 
7. If space is not occupied at any point, the Property Owner shall utilize its best efforts 

to continue to activate the streetscape. This can be accomplished through temporarily 
attaching art on the windows, using the storefront space as an art installation or 
exhibition, or other creative efforts to address street activation. 

 
Minimum Capital Contribution: 

• The minimum total capital contribution through completion to remain eligible for the City 
Funding, as proposed, will be $14,740. Amounts spent on Project Costs below this amount 
will reduce Grant to 50% of such payment. 

• Percent of total COJ investment to overall project cost: $7,370/$14,740 = 50.0% 
    
The Board discussed the resolution.   
 

Motion: Board Member Gillam moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-06, as presented.  
Seconded: Board Member Froats  
 
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 
F. RESOLUTION 2020-09-08: PERFORMANCE WAIVER EXTENSION  

                                 RESOLUTION 2020-09-08 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
(“DIA”) EXTENDING THE WAIVER OF JOB CREATION AND BUSINESS 
COVENANT REQUIREMENTS THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 2020 FOR THE 
LOAN RECIPIENTS IDENTIFIED ON EXHIBIT A ATTACHED HERETO; 
AUTHORIZING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO TAKE 
ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CEO Boyer provided a summary Resolution 2020-09-08 of the extended waiver of such Job 
Creation and Business Covenant requirements through December 31, 2020, for the loan recipients 
identified in Exhibit A attached hereto.  

 
The Board discussed Resolution 2020-09-08.  
 
Board Member Froats highly commended John Crescimbeni for acknowledging the compliance 
items.   
 
 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
CRA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at 2:00 p.m.   
Page 8 of 8 

 
Braxton Gillam asked if there has been any contact with the businesses and whether there is any 
information that one or more will not reopen.  In particular, John Crescimbeni responded that one 
expressed concerns about closing and inquired about their balance to pay the DIA.  
  

Motion: Board Member Worsham moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-08, as presented.  
Seconded: Board Member Gibbs 
 
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 
ADJOURNMENT: Chairman Moody adjourned the meeting at 3:08 p.m. 

 
The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 
comments of this meeting, a recording or transcript is available upon request.  Please contact 

Karen Underwood-Eiland, at (904) 255-5302.  



TAB III.B 

Resolution 2020-10-01: Term Sheet – River City Brewing Company 



 

 

RESOLUTION 2020-10-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 
ISSUE A 30-DAY NOTICE OF DISPOSITION IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
THE NEGOTIATED DISPOSTION PROCEDURE ADOPTED BY DIA, 
FOR AN APPROXIMATELY 3.43 ACRE PARCEL OF CITY-OWNED 
REAL PROPERTY LOCATED GENERALLY BETWEEN MUSEUM 
CIRCLE AND THE ST. JOHNS RIVER, AND BETWEEN ST. JOHNS 
RIVER PARK AND MOSH ON THE EAST AND ST JOHNS MARINA 
BOAT RAMP AND THE ACOSTA BRIDGE ON THE WEST; AND 
IDENTIFIED BY DUVAL COUNTY TAX PARCEL NUMBERS 080270 
1000 AND 08270-1001 AND A PORTION OF PARCEL  080269 0500 ; 
APPROVING THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS INCLUDED AS EXHIBIT 
‘A’ AND EXPRESSING THE INTENTION TO DISPOSE OF SAID 
PROPERTY SUBSTANTIALLY IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 
NEGOTIATED TERMS TO RD RIVER CITY BREWERY, LLC (THE 
“COMPANY”) UPON EXPIRATION OF THE THIRTY DAY NOTICE 
PERIOD ABSENT HIGHER RESPONSIVE OFFERS; AND FINDING 
THAT THIS RESOLUTION FURTHERS THE BUSINESS INVESTMENT 
AND DEVELOPMENT (“BID”) PLAN, INCLUDING THE COMMUNITY 
REDEVELOPMENT AREA PLAN;;  PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 
 

  
WHEREAS, the City owns an approximately 3.43 acre parcel of real property identified 

by Duval County Tax Parcel Numbers 080270 1000 and 080270-1001, currently encumbered by 
a ground lease entered into between the City, JEDC and Maritime Concepts, LLC (“Maritime”) 
as its tenant on July 31, 1998, as amended, for a term of 99 years commencing August 1, 1998 
(“Ground Lease”) for the property commonly known as River City Brewing and its associated 
parking lot (“Ground Lease Property”), as shown on Exhibit “A” attached hereto; and 

 
WHEREAS, Maritime has entered into a contract to sell its interest in the Property and 

improvements to Related Development, LLC or assigns (hereafter, “Purchaser” or “Developer”). 
The Purchaser/Developer has approached the DIA with an offer to acquire the Ground Lease 
Property as well as small adjacent parcels and construct new improvements thereon substantially 
in accordance with the terms set forth in Exhibit A. The precise boundaries and square footage of 
various parcels described in Exhibit A is subject to further refinement but will be substantially 
consistent with the term sheet attached hereto as Exhibit A; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Developer has offered to return a portion of the Ground Leased 

Property to the City for use as additional park space and has requested the disposition and 
conveyance of a portion of Parcel 080269 0500 in exchange therefor (the Ground Lease Property 
less that portion to be retained by the City, plus the small additional parcels to be added to the 
Ground Lease Parcel are hereinafter referred to as the “Property”); and 

 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-01 
PAGE 2 OF 4 

WHEREAS, in order to determine fair value for the property pursuant to Florida Statutes 
Chapter 163.380(2), and as required by City of Jacksonville Code of Ordinances §122.432, the 
DIA has engaged an appraiser to appraise the various parcels involved in the disposition and land 
swap, including the value of the City’s residual interest upon expiration of the Ground Lease; 
and  

 
WHEREAS,  the current marina adjacent to the Ground Leased Property is owned by 

Maritime and they are the holder of the submerged land lease under such improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the current marina is in disrepair however its use for transient boaters and 

the availability of fuel service near the boat ramp are of importance to the DIA and City; and 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the terms of the term sheet attached as Exhibit A, the City will 

apply for a new submerged land lease for the marina area and become the owner of new docks to 
be reconstructed subject to a management agreement with the Developer for operation of the 
marina; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property is located within the Southside Community Redevelopment 

Area (“Southbank CRA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, DIA is the designated Community Redevelopment Agency for the 

Southbank CRA, for which a BID Plan, inclusive of a Community Redevelopment Plan, was 
adopted by Ordinance 2014-560-E; and 

 
WHEREAS, upon adoption of this Resolution, a 30-day notice for the solicitation of 

proposals pursuant to Section 163.380(3)(a), Florida Statutes, and Sections 122.434(a) and (b), 
Jacksonville Ordinance Code, will be issued; and 
 

WHEREAS, the DIA finds that this resolution furthers the following Redevelopment 
Goal and Strategic Objectives found in the BID Plan: 

 
Redevelopment Goal 1. Reinforce Downtown as the City’s unique epicenter for 
business, history, culture, education, and entertainment by  focusing efforts on many 
diverse attractions (such as the reconstructed marina and expanded park) 
 
Redevelopment Goal 2. Increase rental and owner-occupied housing downtown, 
targeting key demographic groups seeking a more urban lifestyle. 
 Strategic Objectives: 

• Actively pursue a minimum of 3,850 built and occupied multi-family 
dwelling units by 2025; and strive to induce construction of 350 multi-
family dwelling units per year. 

• Leverage land contributions, infrastructure investments, incentive grants, 
and low interest loans. 

• Evaluate new multi-family residential development with Downtown 
design guidelines, overall compatibility, financial feasibility, and existing 
Downtown residential developments 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-01 
PAGE 3 OF 4 

• Reconcile city plan policies and regulations to insure policy consistency 
and uniform application. 

 
Redevelopment Goal No. 3 
Simplify the approval process for downtown development and improve departmental and 
agency coordination. 
 
 Strategic Objectives 

• Initiate public/private partnerships. 
 

• Provide publicly owned land and building space for public and private 
development which will support and strengthen Downtown’s commercial 
and residential base and comply with the other Redevelopment Goals. 

 
• Increase recreation, entertainment, cultural heritage, and other 

programming opportunities 
 
Redevelopment Goal No. 4 
Improve walkability/bikeability and connectivity to adjacent neighborhoods and the St. 
Johns River while creating highly walkable nodes. 
  

Strategic Objectives 
• Protect, enhance, and increase public perpendicular access to the 

Riverwalk in line with street grid. 
• Develop interconnected, attractive and safe pedestrian links between the 

Northbank and Southbank, among neighborhoods, activities, greenways 
and open spaces.  

• Require sidewalks of sufficient width and make sure a continuous 
pedestrian path is available. 

• Shape the sidewalks and streets through the sense of enclosure provided 
by buildings. 

 
Redevelopment Goal No. 5 
Establish a waterfront design framework to ensure a unique experience and sense of 
place. 
 

Strategic Objectives 
• Ensure that the riverfront is both physically and visually accessible for 

locals and tourists of all ages and income. 
• Enforce the 50-foot (minimum) building setback from the St. Johns 

River’s water edge. 
• Work to obtain perpetual easements from private property owners along 

the St. Johns River. 
• Formalize guidelines for the design and orientation of buildings and 

improvements that take into account surrounding buildings, structures, 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-01 
PAGE 4 OF 4 

viewscapes, public access, and waterways; design and orientation shall 
actively engage with the River, the Riverwalk, and riverfront 

• Ensure that development and improvements along the riverfront avoid and 
minimize adverse impacts to the health of the St. Johns River. 

• Maintain, enhance, expand, and encourage public river access for 
motorized and non-motorized watercraft points. 

 
WHEREAS, the DIA finds that this resolution furthers CRA Plan Umbrellas 1. 

Economic Development; 4. Parking; 5. Design Guidelines; 7. Housing; 8. Riverfront, Parks and 
open Space, and 9. Public Investment Properties; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 55.108 of the Jacksonville Code of Ordinances grants certain 

powers and duties to the DIA, including: 
 
Interpreting the BID Plan and approve development and redevelopment projects within 
Downtown; 
 
Implementing the BID Plan, and negotiate and grant final approval of downtown 
development and redevelopment agreements, grant agreements, license agreements, and 
lease agreements;  
 
Plan and propose Projects and Public facilities within Downtown. 
 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 
 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.   
 

Section 2. The DIA has determined that absent a higher responsive bid that can 
demonstrate an ability to perform on substantially the same terms and conditions, it will proceed 
to sell the Property to the Company in accordance with the term sheet attached hereto as Exhibit 
A.  

 
Section 3.  The DIA instructs the Chief Executive Officer of the Downtown 

Investment Authority to take all necessary action necessary to effectuate the Notice of 
Disposition for the Property in accordance with its Negotiated Notice of Disposition Process. 

 
Section 4.  Proposals received, if any, will be reviewed by the DIA Chief Executive 

Officer, who will make a recommendation to the DIA Board regarding any responsive alternate 
proposals received. 

 
Section 5.   If no alternate responsive and qualified proposals are received, or if they 

are determined by the CEO to be  lower in value or unresponsive to the unique character and 
ownership structure of the Property, the CEO shall present the final term sheet and site plan to 
DIA its next meeting following the close of the disposition notice period. 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-01 
PAGE 5 OF 4 

 
Section 6. City Council approval will be required to authorize any disposition via 

legislative action. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall become effective on the date it is signed by the 

Chair of the DIA Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________            

Ron Moody, Chair   Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 
 
 
 



1 
 

  
Exhibit A to Resolution 2020-10-01 
Summary of Terms and Conditions 

Negotiated Disposition 
October 2020 

 
 

BACKGROUND: 

The City of Jacksonville (“COJ”) and the Jacksonville Economic Development Council (“JEDC”) entered 
into a Ground Lease with Maritime Concepts, LLC (“Maritime”) as its tenant on July 31, 1998, as 
amended, for a term of 99 years commencing August 1, 1998 (“Ground Lease”) for the property 
commonly known as River City Brewing and its associated parking lot (“Property”).  The lease term has 
77 years remaining. The Ground Lease requires Maritime to pay Base Rent in the amount of $40,000/year 
for the remainder of the term together with a % rent based on sales over a floor (which has never been 
reached). No ad valorem tax is currently paid on the land subject the Ground Lease however tax is paid on 
the Improvements and sales tax is generated and there are approximately fifty (50) jobs attributable to the 
business on site with applicable economic benefits to COJ.  Maritime is obligated to make thirty (30) 
spaces within the parking lot available for the Museum of Science and History (“MOSH”), the City’s 
ground lessor. The restaurant building and all personal property, and the docks were conveyed directly to 
Maritime as owner and Maritime is currently the holder of the Submerged Land Lease (“SLL”) with the 
State of Florida (“State”) on which the docks are located. The Ground Lease contains very few 
obligations regarding the operation of the business or maintenance of the improvements on the site and 
COJ and the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) (as successor to the JEDC) has little recourse 
regarding the current condition of the docks or any deterioration of the improvements, including the 
restaurant. Maritime has a right of first refusal in the event the COJ/DIA elects to sell the Property. 

Maritime has entered into a contract to sell its interest in the Property and improvements to RD River City 
Brewery, LLC (hereafter, “Purchaser” or “Developer”). The Purchaser/Developer has approached the 
DIA with an offer to acquire the Property and construct new improvements thereon substantially in 
accordance with the terms below. The precise boundaries and square footage of various parcels described 
below is subject to further refinement but will be substantially consistent with the proposal below. 

GROUND LEASE 

The Ground Lease shall be terminated. Developer shall enter into a contract with Maritime to terminate 
the Ground Lease and Maritime shall waive its right of first refusal.  Developer shall enter into a purchase 
agreement with COJ to purchase the fee interest in the Conveyed Land (as described in detail below), 
including the Property, and COJ/DIA shall consent to the termination of the Ground Lease.  

LAND CONVEYANCE AND SWAP 

Real Property Subject to Current Lease to be Retained by COJ (“Retained Land”): 

1. Upon termination of the Ground Lease as described above, COJ shall retain the .315 acre (13,728 
square foot) property described as Parcel B and the .06 acre (2,648 square foot) property 
described as Parcel D,  and the .101 acre (4388 square foot) property described as Parcel G (as 
defined below) (collectively, the “Retained Land”).  

2. COJ shall provide necessary easements for the Underground Storage Tank (“UST”) that may be 
located on the property described in Exhibit B to serve the Marina together with access thereto or 



2 
 

COJ may relocate the storage tank to COJ property adjacent to the boat ramp to a location 
mutually agreed to by Developer and COJ. 

3. COJ shall retain the fee title to a 25’ wide strip of property parallel and adjacent to the bulkhead 
along dimension L11 on Parcel C, subject to an air rights agreement in favor of Developer 
prohibiting the construction of vertical improvements greater than 6 feet in height other than 
landscaping, cultural art pieces, lighting fixtures and signage within the retained strip (“Parcel 
G”). 

Leased Property to be Conveyed in Fee (collectively, with property described below, “Conveyed 
Land”): 

1. Parcel C  which consists of the Ground leased Property less and except Parcels B, D, and G  
2. Parcel C conveyed subject to deed restriction requiring the provision of thirty (30) parking spaces 

at mutually agreed locations on levels 1 and 2 of the garage for City use (“MOSH Parking 
Spaces”) and an obligation for Developer, or its assigns, to maintain all Improvements in Class A 
condition, repair casualty damage, or demolish and restore to grassed site . 

Additional COJ Property to be Conveyed in Fee (collectively, with property described above 
“Conveyed Land”): 

1. Parcel E less and except a portion of the northerly edge thereof (Approximately 20 feet wide as 
depicted on the site plan) and that portion along the western half of Parcel E which is north of the 
Durand Street ROW. 

Additional Access easement to be provided over COJ Property 

1. COJ shall retain ownership of Parcel F , the former Durand Ave. right of way, as well as a portion 
of Parcel E, but shall provide Developer an easement for access over said retained property to 
provide access to the Project loading spaces and trash pickup, and relocated fuel tank for 
operation of the marina fuel service 

 

SUBMERGED LAND LEASE 

Developer shall enter into a contract with Maritime to amend the SLL or enter into a new SLL with the 
State in order to ensure uninterrupted operation, subject to the existing terms of the SLL, of the current 
dock post-closing. Any interest COJ has in the existing SLL on property described in Exhibit A shall be 
terminated.  

Developer and/or COJ may apply for a new SLL with the State on Parcel A. COJ and Developer to enter 
into a new, mutually agreed upon, sublease and/or management agreement regarding the docks and 
marina (“Marina”). Developer shall retain ownership of the current docks as may be necessary to ensure 
uninterrupted service until such time as new docks are to be constructed and a new SLL is issued to COJ. 

DEVELOPER OBLIGATIONS 

1. Developer shall design and construct a minimum of 325 Class A multi-family units, including a 
Ship’s Store,  a restaurant/bar with not less than 1800 square feet of heated and cooled space and 
not less than 3200 square feet of outdoor seating, and approximately 500 structured parking 
spaces with a minimum capital investment of $80,000,000 (including acquisition), with a 
minimum construction cost of $70,000,000 substantially as depicted in the site plan attached as 



3 
 

Exhibit __ (the “Project”).  It is anticipated that the Project will be delivered simultaneously with 
Riverwalk, Sidewalk and Marina improvements described herein. 
 

2. The Developer shall take title to the Conveyed Land consistent with terms to be included in the 
RDA, and construct, as part of the Project, a structured parking garage on a portion of the 
Conveyed Land.  Developer will ensure that the MOSH Parking Spaces shall be available for use 
by the general public visiting the COJ’s tenant MOSH, or such other entity as the City may direct.  
During construction of the Project the MOSH Parking Spaces shall be provided under the Acosta 
Bridge or at some other mutually agreed upon location. 
 

3. Developer, and/or its assigns shall construct and a professionally recognized marina developer, 
manager and/or contractor) shall operate a Ship’s Store with a minimum of 1,000 square feet to 
be located on the Conveyed Land and proximate to the boat ramp for so long as the boat ramp 
remains in operation. The Ship’s Store shall be open daily from 8am to 6pm in order to sell 
sundries, ice and other necessities for patrons of the Marina and boat ramp.  Developer shall 
spend a minimum of $300,000 to complete the Ship’s Store. 
 

4. Developer, and/or its assigns (i.e. a professionally recognized marina developer, manager and/or 
contractor) shall manage and execute the re-construction of “A” Dock in accordance with COJ 
and Developer approved plans and pay all costs in excess of $1,143,807 to reconstruct “A” Dock 
(“Excess Marina Costs”). Construction shall be performed by Developer, and/or its assigns, 
pursuant to a contract with the COJ similar to Palm Ave and Forest Street.  All plans shall be 
subject to mutual approval by COJ and Developer, and/or its assigns, and shall include the fueling 
service location. Timing of construction and availability of facilities during construction shall be 
addressed in the contract. COJ shall retain ownership of the “A” Dock improvements.  
 

5. Maritime will complete reconstruction of “B” Dock, subject to prior approval by COJ, prior to 
closing and Developer shall not have any obligation to complete “B” Dock.  COJ or Developer 
may own “B” Dock. Provided however the City shall have no obligation to accept ownership of 
the “B” Dock unless “B” Dock is constructed in accordance with plans approved by the City. 
 

6. Developer shall enter into a sublease and/or management agreement whereby Developer, and/or 
its assigns, shall manage the Marina to a commercially reasonable standard while retaining all 
revenue from and maintenance responsibilities for the Marina. Developer shall be required to 
maintain insurance (other than insurance for flood or hurricane damage) on the improvements and 
shall promptly repair all damage or deterioration. Developer shall maintain normal operating 
hours for the fuel dock consistent with the Ship Shop’s hours. Developer will maintain at least 
twenty (20) of the slips on docks owned by COJ for public transient boat rental. Developer and 
DIA shall mutually agree in negotiation of the Redevelopment Agreement on the location and 
allocation of those twenty (20) public slips between transient (not to exceed forty-eight (48) 
hours) and transient short-term use of four (4) hours or less.  
 

7. Developer shall manage and execute the re-construction of an approximately 25’ wide Riverwalk, 
including landscaping (“Riverwalk”) within Parcel G.  The Riverwalk shall be completed in 
accordance with plans approved by DIA, DDRB and COJ deemed to be consistent with the 
adopted Riverwalk Design Standards, and jointly agreed to by the Developer. The Riverwalk 
shall be open and available for public use and enjoyment located landward of the riverside edge 
of the bulkhead along the Saint Johns River and within property described in Exhibits B, C, and 
G.  Once completed, COJ shall retain ownership and all maintenance obligations of the 



4 
 

Riverwalk, including the bulkhead.  COJ shall maintain the Riverwalk and bulkhead in a Class 
“A” condition and Developer shall have the right of self-help and the ability to seek 
reimbursement from COJ in accordance with terms to be included in the RDA. 

 
8. Developer shall manage and execute the re-construction of a minimum 5’ wide sidewalk (to be 

legally described) available for public use and enjoyment (“Sidewalk”) located landward of the 
riverside edge of the bulkhead adjacent to, and just east of, the boat ramp (to be legally described) 
that connects the Riverwalk to the boat ramp and within property described as Parcel C. 
 

9. Developer shall spend a minimum of $250,000 to complete Riverwalk and Sidewalk 
improvements and other improvements available for public use and enjoyment. 
 

10. Developer shall complete construction of a park-front restaurant consisting of not less than 1800 
square feet of heated and cooled space together with not less than 3200 square feet of outdoor 
dining area as part of the Project. Such restaurant shall be in a mutually agreed upon location 
along the boundaries of Parcels B and C. In the event Parcel B is reduced to accommodate such 
site, replacement land within parcel C shall be provided to the City as necessary to result in 
positive ROI to the City. Developer shall own the land on which the restaurant is constructed as 
well as the improvements. Developer shall operate the restaurant, retain all revenue therefrom and 
be responsible for all maintenance thereof. The restaurant shall remain in operation throughout 
the term of the REV grant. 

 
11. Developer agrees to pursue all approvals with commercially reasonable efforts and to meet the 

following Performance Schedule: 
 

LAND CLOSINGS “as is” sale within sixty (60) days after (i) the execution 
of the RDA, and (ii) Maritime has constructed “B” 
Dock, but no later than ___________. 

FINAL DESIGN to start thirty (30) days after Land Closing but no later 
than ___________. 

PERMITTING  to start thirty (30) days after Final Design is completed. 
but no later than ______________. 

DEMOLITION to start thirty (30) days after Permitting is completed, but 
no later than ______________. 

COMMENCE CONSTRUCTION  to start thirty (30) days after Demolition is completed, 
but no later than __________. 

COMPLETE CONSTRUCTION  36 months after commencement. 
 
In the event developer fails to meet the Construction Completion deadline above, the REV Grant 
shall be reduced by 5% for every two (2) month delay, and forfeited if construction is not 
completed within two (2) years of the established completion date.  Developer shall be entitled to 
extensions of the above deadlines for force majeure. In the event Developer fails to Commence 
Construction by the deadline above, the DIA shall have the right to re-purchase all of the 
Conveyed Land for sixty (60) days at the same price paid by the Developer for the Ground Lease.  
 

INCENTIVES 
 

1. The Conveyed Land shall be conveyed through a process compliant with the DIA Disposition of 
Property procedures as a Negotiated Disposition with the required thirty (30) day public notice of 
proposed disposition. 



5 
 

2. COJ shall convey the Conveyed Land described above to Developer, all free of any reversionary 
interests, (except as provided above regarding COJ’s right to re-purchase prior to Commencement 
of Construction by __________), for $1.00. 

3. DIA to provide a 75% REV Grant for the Project for a term or twenty (20) years or the 
termination of the SS CRA whichever occurs first, unless COJ agrees to assume the obligations of 
the SS CRA.  

4. COJ/DIA to provide up $1,143,807 to redevelop “A” Dock of the Marina subject to the SLL. 
Construction shall be performed by Developer, or assigns, pursuant to a contract with the COJ 
similar to Palm Ave and Forest Street. All plans shall be subject to mutual approval by COJ and 
Developer, and/or its assigns, and shall include the fueling service location. Timing of 
construction and availability of facilities during construction shall be addressed in the contract. 
COJ shall retain ownership of the “A” Dock improvements upon completion. 

5. DIA to convey to Developer at the rate established by Ordinance the necessary stormwater credits 
for the Project to be compliant with all applicable COJ Ordinance Code requirements. Stormwater 
credits for the Project may be addressed in separate documents to be approved by the DIA. 

6. COJ to provide developer a completion grant for the restaurant in the amount of the lesser of 
$500,000.00 or 50% of the actual construction costs of the restaurant and associated outdoor 
dining space.  

 
ROI 

 
1. Land Swap Values: 
 

a. Based on an appraisal prepared for COJ dated September __, 2020, the appraised value of the 
property described as Parcel B is $75.00/square foot or $1,027,678. 

b. Based on an appraisal prepared for COJ dated September __, 2020, the appraised value of the 
COJ’s residual interest in the property described as Parcel C is $ 734,836. 

c. Based on the appraisal prepared for COJ dated September, ____2020, the appraised value of 
the COJ’s interest in the existing lease (rental income stream) is $658,790. 

d. Based on an appraisal prepared for COJ dated September __, 2020, the appraised value of the 
property described as Parcel D is $75.00/square foot or $198,229.  

e. Based on an appraisal prepared for COJ dated September __, 2020, the appraised value of 
the portion of Parcel E conveyed is $30.00/square foot or $162,360. 

f. Based on an appraisal prepared for COJ dated September __, 2020, the appraised value of 
the property described in Exhibit G is $75.00/square foot or $329,156. 
 
The net cost the COJ/DIA attributable to the Land Swap is:____________$928.00___ 
 

2. COJ Improvement costs: 
a. Marina:     $1,143,807 
b. Parking and entrance to boat ramp  $1,650,380 

 
3. COJ Restaurant Completion Grant   $ 500,000 

 
4. Developer Expenses for Public Improvements: 

a. Riverwalk and Sidewalk   $250,000 
b. “A” Dock      $TBD 
c. “B” Dock     $TBD 

 
5. Local Option Sales Tax     $______0_ 



6 
 

 
6. Payroll       $______0_ 

 
7. New ad valorem revenue over 20 years   $15,918,605  

 
8. REV Grant      $11,902,028  

  
 ROI of 1:06 
 
ROI ANALYSIS DOES NOT INCLUDE1 
 
 “Other” taxes (SJRWMD/DCPS/FIND)  ~$10,000,000 
 Real estate taxes on $4.9M base   ~$  1,000,000 
 Stormwater (w/ 2% escalator)    ~$     300,000 
 
  

 
1 All values over 20 years. 



7 
 

PARCEL B 
 
  



8 
 

PARCEL B CONT.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

PARCEL C 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 
 

PARCEL C CONT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



11 
 

PARCEL D 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 
 

PARCEL D CONT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



13 
 

PARCEL E 

 



14 
 

PARCEL E CONT. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



15 
 

PARCEL G 
Riverwalk parcel 

 
Parcel G, to be more formally described, shall consist of a 25 foot wide strip of property parallel 
and adjacent to the bulkhead along dimension L11 on Parcel C, subject to an air rights agreement 
in favor of Developer prohibiting the construction of vertical improvements greater than 6 feet in 
height other than landscaping, cultural art pieces, lighting fixtures and signage within the retained 
strip (“Parcel G”). Parcel G is for purposes of this term sheet considered to be 25 feet wide and 
175.55 long and consisting of approximately 4389 square feet. 



RIVER CITY BREWING COMPANY
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



Downtown Investment Authority 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

River City Brewing Company 
October 13, 2020 

 
 
Modification of Proposal to include restaurant/bar 

1. In response to questions and concerns regarding loss of a restaurant, lounge, or space to be 
available for use by the public, the Developer proposes to include a park-front restaurant 
consisting of not less than 1,800 square feet of heated and cooled space together with not less 
than 3,200 square feet of outdoor dining area as part of the Project. The restaurant is modeled 
after Glass & Vine in Coconut Grove (glassandvine.com). The restaurant will be in a mutually 
agreed upon location along the boundaries of Parcels B and C. In the event Parcel B is reduced to 
accommodate the site, replacement land within parcel C will be provided to the City as necessary 
to result in positive ROI to the City. Developer shall own the land on which the restaurant is 
constructed as well as the improvements. Developer shall operate the restaurant, retain all 
revenue therefrom and be responsible for all maintenance thereof. The restaurant shall remain 
in operation throughout the term of the REV grant. In conjunction, COJ to provide developer a 
completion grant for the restaurant in the amount of the lesser of $500,000 or 50% of the actual 
construction costs of the restaurant and associated outdoor dining space. The impact on the REV 
eligibility per the CRA/BID Plan is captured below: 

 

Program Parameters Development Metrics 
Point 

Eligibility 
5% for every 25 units produced in Downtown Jacksonville 
(not to exceed a factor of 30%); plus 335 units 30% 
15% for the development of City-owned lazy / 
underutilized assets; plus Y 15% 
10% for a mixed-use development for each 2,500 square 
feet of retail/office/commercial space (not to exceed 
20%); plus 

2,800 sf Ship store/restaurant 
3,200 sf outdoor dining area 15% 

10% if the Developer documents they are working with 
an employer or Non-profit organization to provide other 
housing incentives for Downtown; plus N/A 0% 
15% for the development of green space and amenities 
for residents; plus Y 15% 
15% for a project located in a DIA designated Strategic 
Housing Area (an “SHA”). N/A 0% 
TOTAL (Maximum)  75% 
 
While the table above now reflects the project qualifies under the BID for a 75% REV as proposed, the 
request for 20 years, as opposed to 15, still requires City Council approval of the REV in addition to 
approval of the disposition. 
 
 



Updated Financial Metrics 
The following modifies information captured in the Staff Report and Term Sheet presented to the SIC and  
captured in the Ex. A Term Sheet to the Resolution. 
 

1. Estimated incremental Ad Valorem Taxes generated is modified to $15,918,605 to capture the 
addition of the restaurant, and better reflects the current values of the ground lease property, 
improvements to the ground lease property, submerged land lease property, and improvements 
to the submerged land lease property. Each of these amounts is deducted from the underwritten 
improvements, although taxes are currently collected only on the improvements to the ground 
lease property and improvements to the submerged land lease property and related tangible 
personal property. 

2. The REV amount is adjusted to $11,902,028 as a result of these and other minor revisions related 
to the REV/ROI model. 

3. These revisions then impact the following: 
a. Total Expected Benefit is $17,723,668 
b. Total City Investment is $16,752,201 
c. ROI is 1.06X 

 
Aggregate Contribution to TIF and Tax Revenue 
In response to questions raised by members of the SIC and public comments, the following information 
related to impact of the proposal to the TIF as well as to the tax base more broadly is provided below. 
 

1. From the point of acquisition and through the twenty-year funding period, incremental ad 
valorem taxes projected to be collected for the benefit of the City, net of current tax assessed 
values, and net of the REV incentive, equals $3,967,343. This is the projected incremental net 
contribution to the Southside Redevelopment Trust Fund. 

2. From the point of acquisition and through the twenty-year funding period, ad valorem taxes 
projected to be collected for the benefit of the City, inclusive of current tax assessed values 
whether taxes are being collected or not, and net of the REV incentive, equals $5,539,571. (The 
base-year assessed value of the property under ground lease is currently tax exempt but is 
included in district base year assessment in calculation of the REV grant and net TIF revenue as 
shown above. The calculation of in this paragraph reflects the revenue gained by eliminating the 
exemption, and also includes revenue derived from improvements, for which taxes are currently 
being paid.) 

3. More broadly, during this same period, total ad valorem taxes projected to be collected including 
the county, the school board, the St. Johns Water Management District, and Inland Waterways 
equals $28,169,353, less the REV proposal of $11,816,958, provides aggregate funding of 
$16,352,395 to these budgets. This amount is also inclusive of current tax assessed values, 
whether taxes are being collected or not. 

4. When compared to the actual tax receipts received currently from the subject property modeled 
with growth of 2% annually, the amounts shown above project incremental tax revenue of 
$5,077,712 for the City alone, and $15,678,613 to the broader tax recipients over this period 
inclusive of current tax assessed values, whether taxes are being collected or not. 
  



Figure 1. Revised ROI Calculation 
 

   $7
5 

M
ill

io
n 

in
 C

ap
ita

l E
xp

en
di

tu
re

s (
10

/1
2/

20
)

Ad
 V

al
or

em
 T

ax
es

 G
en

er
at

ed
In

cr
em

en
ta

l C
ou

nt
y 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
M

ill
ag

e 
(1

)
15

,9
18

,6
05

$ 
   

   
   

   

Lo
ca

l O
pt

io
n 

Sa
le

s 
Ta

x
(2

)
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pa
yr

ol
l

(3
)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Ad
d'

l B
en

ef
its

 P
ro

vi
de

d 
(P

ar
ce

ls
 B

/D
, R

iv
er

w
al

k 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
)

(4
)

1,
80

5,
06

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l C

ity
 E

xp
ec

te
d 

Be
ne

fit
s

17
,7

23
,6

68
$ 

To
ta

l C
ity

 In
ve

st
m

en
t

(5
)

16
,7

52
,2

01
$ 

97
1,

46
7

$ 
   

   
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

at
io

1.
06

(1
) -

 T
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

Co
m

pa
ny

 is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
$7

5,
01

5,
00

0 
in

 e
lig

ib
le

 C
ap

ita
l C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

   
   

   
an

d 
$0

 in
 ta

xa
bl

e 
Ta

ng
ib

le
 P

er
so

na
l P

ro
pe

rt
y

(2
) -

 Lo
ca

l O
pt

io
n 

Sa
le

s 
Ta

x 
is

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
ge

ne
ra

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

re
ta

il 
sa

le
s,

 fo
od

 a
nd

 b
ev

er
ag

e,
   

   
  a

nd
 c

om
m

er
ci

al
 le

as
es

.
(3

) -
 Jo

b 
es

tim
at

es
 a

re
 c

al
cu

la
te

d 
at

 #
 o

f j
ob

s 
* 

av
g.

 w
ag

e.
  A

ss
um

es
 2

0%
 s

pe
nt

 lo
ca

lly
 a

nd
   

   
   

a 
1 

pe
rc

en
t s

al
es

 ta
x 

ov
er

 2
0 

ye
ar

s.
 

(4
) -

 V
al

ue
 o

f a
ny

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

be
in

g 
m

ad
e 

fo
r t

he
 b

en
ef

it 
of

 th
e 

ci
ty

 in
 c

on
si

de
ra

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
in

ce
nt

iv
e

(5
) -

 C
ity

 In
ce

nt
iv

es
 a

s f
ol

lo
w

s:
RE

V
11

,9
02

,0
28

$ 
   

   
   

   
La

nd
 (P

ar
ce

l E
), 

lo
st

 le
as

e 
re

ve
nu

e,
 b

oa
t r

am
p 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

, c
om

pl
et

io
n 

gr
an

t
4,

85
0,

17
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l D
ire

ct
 In

ce
nt

iv
es

16
,7

52
,2

01
$ 

   
   

   
   

N
O

TE
: 

   
   

   
   

 
Sq

ua
re

 F
ee

t (
SF

)
$/

SF
TO

TA
L 

to
 R

EL
TO

TA
L 

to
 C

O
J

Ac
re

s:
CO

J t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

Pa
rc

el
 B

 fr
om

 R
EL

13
,7

28
$7

5
1,

02
7,

67
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

0.
31

5
CO

J t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

Pa
rc

el
 G

 fr
om

 R
EL

4,
37

5
$7

5
32

9,
15

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
10

0
CO

J t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 P
ar

ce
l D

 fr
om

 R
EL

2,
64

8
$7

5
19

8,
22

9
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

0.
06

1
RE

L t
o 

re
ce

iv
e 

a 
po

rt
io

n 
of

 P
ar

ce
l E

 fr
om

 C
O

J
5,

41
2

$3
0

16
2,

36
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
0.

12
4

CO
J l

os
t R

CB
C 

le
as

e 
re

ve
nu

e 
($

40
k 

@
 X

%
 fo

r 7
6.

17
 y

rs
)

6.
0%

65
8,

79
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
CO

J r
es

ta
ur

an
t c

om
pl

et
io

n 
gr

an
t

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
RE

L t
o 

pa
y 

fo
r i

m
pr

ov
ed

 R
iv

er
w

al
k

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
CO

J t
o 

im
pr

ov
e 

bo
at

 ra
m

p 
ha

m
m

er
he

ad
, r

el
oc

at
io

n 
of

 fu
el

 ta
nk

1,
65

0,
38

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
CO

J l
os

t R
es

id
ua

l V
al

ue
 P

ar
ce

l C
   

  F
V 

of
 $

9.
75

M
 P

ar
ce

l C
 p

ur
ch

as
e 

co
m

po
un

de
d 

@
 Y

%
 fo

r 7
7 

yr
s

2.
5%

$6
5,

27
4,

30
4

   
  N

PV
 o

f F
V 

of
 P

ar
ce

l C
 d

is
co

un
te

d 
@

 Z
%

 fo
r 7

7 
yr

s
6.

0%
73

4,
83

6
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

M
ar

in
a

1,
14

3,
80

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

TO
TA

L
4,

85
0,

17
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

1,
80

5,
06

3
$ 

   
   

   
   

   



 

General location of 
restaurant 



TAB III.C 

Resolution 2020-10-02: REV Grant Term Sheet - Doro 



 

RESOLUTION 2020-10-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
APPROVING A MARKET RATE MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING 
RECAPTURE ENHANCED VALUE GRANT (“REV GRANT”) BETWEEN 
THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND JACKSONVILLE 
PROPERTIES I, LLC; AUTHORIZING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER (THE “CEO”) TO NEGOTIATE A REDEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT REGARDING SAME; AUTHORIZING THE CEO OF THE 
DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT TO EXECUTE SUCH AGREEMENT; 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 WHEREAS, Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, a single purpose entity created by RISE: a 
Real Estate Company (“RISE” or the “Developer”) for the purposes of the subject development 
has ownership of real estate parcels commonly known as the Doro Fixtures property located 
principally at 102 & 128 A. Philip Randolph Blvd, located within the Sports and Entertainment 
Overlay District of the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area through a ground-
lease investor; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to build a mixed-use, residential apartment complex 
on the site located principally at 102 & 128 A. Philip Randolph Blvd.  The new proposed mixed-
use rental apartment facility is proposed to include 247 residential rental units and more than 9,000 
square feet of retail space.  Collectively the project will result in an investment of approximately 
$50.3 million for the construction of the rental apartment facility and associated improvements; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the increased private capital investment totaling $50.3 million in real 
property will increase the county ad valorem tax base over the useful life of the assets and meets 
the existing CRA Plan Multi-family REV Grant guidelines; and 

 
WHEREAS, to assist RISE, or its related single purpose entity, to increase the amount of 

residential units in Jacksonville will require financial assistance from the Downtown Investment 
Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is authorized per section 

55.108 Economic Development of the City Ordinance Code, to utilize the Tax Increment Finance 
District Trust Funds to foster the redevelopment of the Downtown Northbank Community 
Redevelopment Area; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Downtown Investment Authority (“DIA”) is authorized per section 

55.108(8)-(9)(b) Economic Development of the City Ordinance Code, to implement the BID Plan, 
grant final approval of redevelopment agreements, without further action of Council, in 
furtherance of the BID Plan; and 



Resolution 2020-10-02 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
WHEREAS, DIA is proposing a REV Grant up to 65% of the incremental increase in the 

county portion of ad valorem taxes generated from their proposed private capital investment of up 
to $50.3 million for fifteen (15) years not to exceed $5,751,559, and the REV Grant is consistent 
with the DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant guidelines set forth in the Bid Plan; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, the REV Grant annual payments will be funded through the Norththside Tax 
Increment Finance District Trust Fund; and 
 

WHEREAS, the proposed City of Jacksonville REV Grant incentive is a material factor 
in assisting RISE, or its single purpose entity, to expand its residential rental capacity in 
Jacksonville within the Northbank of downtown. 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 
 Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 
incorporated herein by this reference.   

 
Section 2.  The DIA hereby approves a REV Grant of up to 65% of the incremental 

increase in the county portion of ad valorem taxes generated from the proposed private capital 
investment of up to $50.3 million for fifteen (15) years not to exceed $5,751,559 subject to the 
terms and conditions as provided in the Term Sheet attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 3.     The DIA finds that this resolution and the allocation of development rights 

furthers the following Redevelopment Goals and Strategic Objectives within the Northbank 
Downtown Community Redevelopment Area Plan: 

 
Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing downtown, targeting 
key demographic groups seeking a more urban lifestyle.   
 

Strategic Objective: Actively pursue a minimum of 3,850 built and occupied multi-
family dwelling units by 2025; and strive to induce construction of 350 multi-family 
dwelling units per year. 

 
Redevelopment Goal No. 4: Improve walkability/bikeability and connectivity to adjacent 
neighborhoods and the St. Johns River while creating highly walkable nodes. 
 

Strategic Objective: Create a mixture of uses so that housing, activities, retail and 
other businesses are within useful walking distance. 

 



Resolution 2020-10-02 
Page 3 
 

 
 

Section 4.  The DIA hereby authorizes its CEO to negotiate a Redevelopment 
Agreement authorizing the REV Grant as described above in accordance with the term sheet 
attached as Exhibit A.  
 

Section 5. The DIA hereby authorizes its CEO to execute said agreement on behalf of 
the DIA. 

 
Section 6.   This Resolution, 2020-10-02, shall become effective on the date it is signed by 

the Chair of the DIA Board. 
 

 
WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 

 
 
 

______________________           
 Ron Moody, Chairman  Date 

 
 
VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 



Resolution 2020-10-02 
Page 4 
 

Exhibit A: 
 

DIA Market-Rate Multifamily REV Grant 
TERM SHEET 

The Doro 
 

Project: The Doro, a 247-unit multifamily development located at 102 A. Philip Randolph Blvd. in the Sports and 
Entertainment District of the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area. 

Developer/ Applicant:  Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, a single-asset entity created for this development by RISE: 
A Real Estate Company based in Valdosta, Georgia; however, the property will be developed under a ground lease 
with iStar who is anticipated to be the property owner for tax purposes, but is not a co-applicant. 

Total Development Costs (estimate):  $65,645,213 

Underwritten Development Costs Used for Grant Calculation: $50,327,566 

Equity (proposed): $30,645,213 (46.7% of TDC) 

City Funding: No more than $5,751,559 (through the City of Jacksonville Downtown Investment Authority), as 
follows: 

Infrastructure: No City of Jacksonville infrastructure improvements are contemplated. 

 Land: No City of Jacksonville land is committed to the project. 

REV Grant: The Developer is requesting a Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant for 65% of the 
ad valorem tax increment generated by the project for a period of 15 years.  The total REV grant 
indebtedness will not exceed $5,751,559 and will be paid annually beginning the first year of taxation 
following completion based upon the incremental increase in the Duval County Operating Millage ad 
valorem taxes collected. 

 Loans: No other loans, grants, or other funding from the City of Jacksonville are contemplated for this 
project. 

Minimum Capital Contribution: 
• The minimum total capital contribution through completion to remain eligible for the REV Grant 

is $50,000,000 
• Percent of COJ investment to overall project cost: $5,751,559 /$65,645,213 = 8.76% 
• Percent of COJ investment to underwritten project cost: $5,751,559 /$50,327,566 = 11.4% 

Additional Commitments: 
1) The Developer commits to the development of: 

• A minimum of 240 dwelling units. 
• A seven-story garage with a minimum of 280 spaces. 
• Rooftop swimming pool, fitness center, and other amenities generally as outlined in plans submitted 

with the application. 



Resolution 2020-10-02 
Page 5 
 

• Not less than 9,000 square feet of retail/restaurant/lounge space which will be open to the public 
during normal business hours. Such space will be split roughly in equal proportion between the 
ground floor and the rooftop space. 

2) In association, the Developer commits to the incorporation of design elements, signage, and other measures 
that recognize the historical significance of the existing property and the area in which it is located. 

3) Developer commits to pursue in good faith, with all best efforts including financial support, to finalize 
negotiations with the adjacent property owner to utilize the current Forsyth Street E roadway for activated 
public space for use during game days and other events within the Sports and Entertainment District. 

Performance Schedule: 
• Commencement of Construction: Within six (6) months following execution of the Redevelopment 

Agreement, applicant commits to commencement of construction, meaning receipt of all required 
approvals, permitting, and closing on all required financing to allow the start of construction 
activities and has actually broken ground to begin work. 

• Substantial Completion: Within twenty-four (24) months following commencement of construction 
as defined above. 

• The DIA CEO will have authority to extend this Performance Schedule, in the CEO’s discretion, 
for up to six (6) months for good cause shown by the Developer / Applicant. 

This Term Sheet proposal is limited by the following conditions: 

The proposed REV Grant requires adherence to all terms and conditions found in the DDRB approval letter 
dated May 21, 2020. 

There will be additional terms, conditions, rights, responsibilities, warranties, and obligations for both 
parties which shall be determined in a later negotiated mutually agreeable written contract (or multiple 
written contracts as is deemed necessary).  

 



THE DORO 
STAFF REPORT



 

1 

 

The Doro 

DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant 

Staff Report 

October 5, 2020 

 

 

Applicant: Jacksonville Properties I, LLC (Rise: A Real Estate Company) 

Project: The Doro - multifamily development  

Program Request: DIA Market Rate Multi-Family Housing REV Grant 

Total Development Costs (as presented): $65,645,213 
Total Development Cost (as underwritten): $50,327,566 

REV Requested: 65% / 15 years 

REV Recommended: 65% / 15 years 

REV Amount (Not to exceed): $6,230,856 

 

The Project 

The developer, RISE: A Real Estate Company (“RISE”), based in Valdosta, GA and with an additional office 
in Jacksonville, FL, has applied to the DIA for a REV Grant to facilitate development of a new multifamily 
housing complex on the site of the Doro Fixture Building and surrounding properties, located principally 
at 102 & 128 A. Philip Randolph Blvd. The site is approximately 1.63 acres, comprised of seven buildings 
constructed between 1914 and 1954; located within the Sports and Entertainment Overlay District of 
the Downtown Northbank Community Redevelopment Area; and is bounded by A. Philip Randolph Blvd. 
to the east, Forsyth Street E. to the south, Lafayette St. to the west, and Adams Street E. to the north. 
Each of the seven buildings will be razed for the new development to take place on this block. 
 
According to the Planning and Development Department’s Historic Preservation Section, the property is 

not part of the Downtown National Register District, nor was it deemed eligible by the State Historic 

Preservation Office for individual designation. The project received final DDRB approval at the May 14, 

2020 board meeting.  

     
The Doro 

The Doro is a proposed 247-unit multifamily apartment complex, built in a single building that will also 

include a seven-level structured parking garage providing approximately 312 parking spaces wrapped by 

the complex. In addition, the project proposes 4,875 square feet of ground level retail, commercial, and 

restaurant space with the rooftop presenting a pool amenity for residents, and a 4,653 square foot 

terrace for indoor/outdoor bar open to the public. Access to the rooftop area from the ground floor is 

anticipated to be provided by an elevator dedicated only to this level.  

 



 

2 

 

The overall property will comprise and 

estimated 359,849 square feet, and the 247 

units will include one-bedroom (120 units @ 

750 sf, 53 units @ 625 sf, 13 units @ 954 sf) 

and two-bedroom apartments (61 units @ 

1,025 sf) for lease at rates ranging from $1.94 

sf to $2.34 sf. 

 

As part of the redevelopment, the former 

Forsyth Street E., (officially closed) which runs 

east to west between the Doro site and the 

property to the south where Manifest Distilling 

and Intuition Ale Works operate, is proposed to 

be  redeveloped to become a 6,100 square feet 

street plaza with outdoor seating, lighting, and 

activities.  

 

Forsyth Street E. is included in the fee-simple 

ownership of the adjacent property and 

negotiations are underway with the owner of 

that property for the shared usage of this 

space, particularly during game days and other 

events in the Sport’s and Entertainment District. The property is ideally located for such activity given its 

proximity to TIAA Bank Field, Daily’s Place, the Baseball Grounds of Jacksonville, and VyStar Veterans 

Memorial Arena all of which are located between two to five blocks away. This amenity would make a 

positive contribution towards furthering the Entertainment aspect of this downtown district. See the 

renderings of this activated area shown below: 

 

 



 

3 

 

 

 
 

The Development Team 

RISE will be developing this property under the single-purpose entity created for this project, 

Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, organized under Delaware law with authorization to conduct business in 

the State of Florida provided by the Florida Department of State, Division of Corporations. Its Manager is 

shown to be Mr. Gregory Hunter, the CFO of RISE. 

 

RISE, based in Valdosta, GA, was formed in 1995 with a focus on multifamily and student housing 

development. The firm has completed more than 80 projects, more than 18.5 million square feet with a 

value in excess of $3 billion across 23 states, mostly along the easter seaboard, Texas, and Louisiana. The 

company’s development activity has produced parking decks and retail spaces totaling over 8,900 

structured parking spaces, and 288,000 square feet of retail., and over 4,500 dining seats.  

 

The executive team for RISE includes: 

• Ryan Holmes, CEO: Prior to RISE, Holmes founded the property management firm, Sunbelt 

Holding Management Company where he spearheaded all growth, business development and 

daily operations. This organization later evolved into Ambling Management Company and was 

recently listed as number 42 in Multifamily Executive magazine’s “Top 50” ranking. Holmes 

earned a bachelor’s degree in finance and real estate from Georgia Southern University. 

Additionally, he is a Georgia Registered Real Estate Appraiser and holds active broker licenses in 

Georgia, North Carolina and South Carolina. 

• Greg Blias, President: During his tenure with the company, Blias has been associated with 75 

student housing developments totaling more than $2.6 billion. Blias graduated from Mississippi 

State University with a bachelor’s degree in business administration. 

• Greg Hunter, CFO: Before joining RISE, Hunter was with Hunt Construction Company, Inc., where 

he served in various financial positions and was ultimately promoted to assistant controller. 

Hunter graduated from Valdosta State University and holds a bachelor of business 

administration degree in accounting. Hunter is also a certified public accountant and a member 

of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (AICPA). 



 

4 

 

• Matt Marshall, Vice President (Principal contact): Marshall has experience in multiple residential 

uses including market rate housing, mixed-uses, building conversions and extensive rehab 

projects. Marshall has over 19 years of industry experience developing over 7,000 market rate 

apartments, and over 21 student housing transactions. Marshall graduated from Indiana State 

University and is an active member of the Urban Land Institute. He is also a Certified 

Commercial Investment Member candidate (CCIM) and holds a Florida real estate license. 

 

RISE will develop, construct, and manage The Doro in-house. Additional information on the firm may be 

found at the company’s website: https://risere.com/. 

 

Architect: Niles Bolton Associates – Based in Atlanta, GA, founded in 1975, 150 employees.  

• Jacksonville engagements  include: Southbank Apartments, Ventures Development; 500 

Atlantic, Tribridge Residential (Neptune Beach)  

• NBA has designed 5 million sustainable square feet of multifamily space (LEED, Earthcraft, 

SpiRiT, EnergyStar).  

• Based on residential design fees, the firm ranks 8th among U.S. firms according to Building 

Design + Construction magazine in 2019.  

• Named Top 50 design firm in the U.S. by Building Design + Construction for 2020.  

• Licensed in all 50 states and currently active in 30 states and the District of Columbia with active 

projects in 49 states and 16 countries. 

 

Civil Design and Engineering: England-Thims & Miller – Based in Jacksonville, FL, founded in 1977, 245 

employees. 

• Practice areas include construction engineering and inspection, environmental, institutional, 

land development, public works, transportation, surveying and mapping. 

• Engineering-News Record Top 500 Design Firm 

• Local engagements include Nocatee (a top 10 best selling community in the nation), Bartram 

Springs, Bartram Park (a top 10 best selling community in the nation), Brooklyn Station, Tapestry 

Park, St. Johns Town Center, and many others.  

 

Pro Forma Operations 

• As modeled in the Developer’s pro forma, the Doro is expected to generate Effective Gross 

Income of $5.8 million in its first full year of operation with growth of 2.5-3% in subsequent 

years. This estimate includes residential rent assumptions of $1.94 sf to $2.34 sf, other income 

of just over $1 million per year, and incorporates vacancy rate of 5% of projected Potential 

Gross Income. 

• Other income of just over $1 million annually is comprised of parking permit fees (41%), retail 

(22%), cable and internet income (22%), and miscellaneous other (14%). 

• Total operating expenses are estimated at approximately 42% of revenues annually including 

net property taxes of $370-470,000 per year through the first ten years, and ground lease cost 

of $700-833,000 per year discussed further under Capital Considerations. 

https://risere.com/


 

5 

 

• Management fee paid to the related entity, RISE Management, is modeled at 3% of Effective 

Gross Income. 

• Replacement reserves are modeled at $203 per unit, per year. 

• Net Operating Income is estimated to be $3.3 million in the first year of stabilized operations. 

 

Capital Considerations 

• Total development costs as presented equals $65,645,213 

• Net of developer fee, finance costs, reserves, market studies, and similar costs deemed to not 

directly add to the taxable value of the development, underwritten development costs for 

purposes of the REV grant total $50,327,566. 

• Total equity to be injected is shown to be $30,645,213; 46.7% of TDC. 

• $17,000,000 of equity is invested by iStar (https://www.istar.com/) which will be used to 

acquire the underlying property (acquisition cost of $5,350,000) which will then be structured as 

a ground lease to the operating entity. The additional $11,650,000 will apply towards further 

development costs. 

o It has been confirmed with the Duval County Property Appraiser’s office that ad valorem 

taxes will be assessed on the property on a combined basis. 

o Jacksonville Properties I, LLC will be responsible for payment of all property taxes, and 

therefor is the applicant on the REV request. 

• Construction and permanent debt on the development is shown to be limited to $35,000,000; 

53.3% of TDC. 

• The cash-on-cash ROI for the equity investor (net of the ground lease investor) is calculated as 

7.9% in the first year of stabilized operation. 

• Using debt assumptions of 360-month term, 5% interest, and property assumptions of 2% 

growth on underwritten development cost and 5.5% cap rate at the point of conversion, the 

ten-year, pre-tax, levered IRR on the invested equity (net of the ground lease investor) is 

calculated as 16.8% with the REV incorporated into the NOI estimates. 

 

REV Calculation: 

The table following outlines the program parameters of the DIA Market Rate Multifamily Housing REV 

Grant program. Under this program, applicants are limited to a maximum of 75% REV for a period of 

fifteen years, and requests beyond these limits requires approval by the City of Jacksonville City Council. 

In scoring the project proposal, the Development achieves a score of 65%. 

 

Program Parameters 

Development 

Metrics 

Point 

Eligibility 

5% for every 25 units produced in Downtown Jacksonville (not to exceed 

a factor of 30%); plus 247 30% 

15% for the development of City-owned lazy / underutilized assets; plus N/A 0% 

10% for a mixed use development for each 2,500 square feet of 

retail/office/commercial space (not to exceed 20%); plus 9,528 20% 

https://www.istar.com/


 

6 

 

10% if the Developer documents they are working with an employer or 

Non-profit organization to provide other housing incentives for 

Downtown; plus N/A 0% 

15% for the development of green space and amenities for residents; 

plus Max 15% 

15% for a project located in a DIA designated Strategic Housing Area (an 

“SHA”). N/A  

TOTAL  65% 

 

As calculated on the proposed of REV $6,230,856, and the underwritten development cost of 
$50,327,566, and tangible personal property of  $381,000, the estimated ROI on the City’s investment is 
1.54X. 
 
Recommendation: 
DIA Staff recommends approval of a Market-Rate Multifamily REV Grant in the amount of $6,230,856 
with the terms and conditions as outlined on the attached Exhibit A Term Sheet. 



Downtown Investment Authority 
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION 

The Doro 
October 13, 2020 

 
 
Updated Financial Metrics 
The following modifies information captured in the Staff Report and Term Sheet presented to the SIC and 
is captured in the Ex. A Term Sheet to the Resolution. 
 

1. Estimated incremental Ad Valorem Taxes generated is adjusted to $8,886,690 to capture minor 
revisions within the ROI/REV model. 

2. The REV amount has been adjusted to be $5,751,559 as a result of these revisions. 
 
Aggregate Contribution to TIF and Tax Revenue 
In response to questions raised by members of the SIC and public comments, the following information 
related to impact of the proposal to the TIF as well as to the tax base more broadly is provided below. 
 

1. From the point of acquisition and through the fifteen-year funding period, incremental ad valorem 
taxes projected to be collected for the benefit of the City, net of current tax assessed values, and 
net of the REV incentive, equals $3,135,131. This is the projected incremental net contribution to 
the Downtown East Redevelopment Trust Fund. 

2. From the point of acquisition and through the fifteen-year funding period, ad valorem taxes 
projected to be collected for the benefit of the City, inclusive of current tax assessed values, net 
of the REV incentive, equals $3,754,258.  

3. More broadly, during this same period, total ad valorem taxes projected to be collected including 
the county, the school board, the St. Johns Water Management District, and Inland Waterways 
equals $14,863,154, less the REV proposal of $5,751,559, provides aggregate net funding of  
$9,111,595 to these budgets. 

4. When compared to the actual tax receipts received currently from the subject property modeled 
with growth of 2% annually, the amounts shown above project actual incremental income of  
$3,468,477 for the County alone, and  $8,665,378 to the broader tax recipients over this period 
inclusive of current tax assessed values.  



Figure 1. Revised ROI Calculation 
 

  $5
0.

3 
M

ill
io

n 
in

 C
ap

ita
l E

xp
en

di
tu

re
s (

10
/1

3/
20

)

Ad
 V

al
or

em
 T

ax
es

 G
en

er
at

ed
In

cr
em

en
ta

l C
ou

nt
y 

O
pe

ra
tin

g 
M

ill
ag

e 
(1

)
8,

88
6,

69
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

Lo
ca

l O
pt

io
n 

Sa
le

s 
Ta

x
(2

)
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

Pa
yr

ol
l

(3
)

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   

Ad
d'

l B
en

ef
its

 P
ro

vi
de

d
(4

)
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

To
ta

l C
ity

 E
xp

ec
te

d 
Be

ne
fit

8,
88

6,
69

0
$ 

   
To

ta
l C

ity
 In

ve
st

m
en

t
(5

)
5,

75
1,

55
9

$ 
   

N
et

 B
en

ef
it

3,
13

5,
13

1
$ 

   
Re

tu
rn

 o
n 

In
ve

st
m

en
t R

at
io

1.
55

(1
) -

 T
he

 in
ve

st
m

en
t f

ro
m

 th
e 

Co
m

pa
ny

 is
 e

st
im

at
ed

 to
 b

e 
$5

0,
32

7,
56

6 
in

 e
lig

ib
le

 C
ap

ita
l C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

fo
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t

   
   

   
an

d 
$3

81
,0

00
 in

 ta
xa

bl
e 

Ta
ng

ib
le

 P
er

so
na

l P
ro

pe
rt

y
(2

) -
 Lo

ca
l O

pt
io

n 
Sa

le
s 

Ta
x 

is
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

re
ve

nu
e 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
re

ta
il 

sa
le

s,
 fo

od
 a

nd
 b

ev
er

ag
e,

   
   

  a
nd

 c
om

m
er

ci
al

 le
as

es
.

(3
) -

 Jo
b 

es
tim

at
es

 a
re

 c
al

cu
la

te
d 

at
 #

 o
f j

ob
s 

* 
av

g.
 w

ag
e.

  A
ss

um
es

 2
0%

 s
pe

nt
 lo

ca
lly

 a
nd

   
   

   
a 

1 
pe

rc
en

t s
al

es
 ta

x 
ov

er
 2

0 
ye

ar
s.

 
(4

) -
 V

al
ue

 o
f a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
be

in
g 

m
ad

e 
fo

r t
he

 b
en

ef
it 

of
 th

e 
ci

ty
 in

 c
on

si
de

ra
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

in
ce

nt
iv

e
(5

) -
 C

ity
 In

ce
nt

iv
es

 a
s f

ol
lo

w
s:

RE
V

5,
75

1,
55

9
$ 

   
O

th
er

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
To

ta
l D

ire
ct

 In
ce

nt
iv

es
5,

75
1,

55
9

$ 
   



TAB IV 

DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 



TAB IV.A 

September 16, 2020 Downtown Investment Authority Board Meeting Minutes 



 

Downtown Investment Authority 
Zoom Meeting 

Wednesday, September 16 2020, at 3:08 p.m.  

Downtown Investment Authority 
  MEETING MINUTES 
 
DIA Board Members:   Ron Moody, Chairman; Braxton Gillam, Esq., Vice Chairman; Craig 
Gibbs, Esq., Carol Worsham Secretary; Todd Froats; David Ward, Esq.; Jim Citrano; and Bill 
Adams, Esq.   
 
DIA Board Members Excused: Oliver Barakat;  
 
Mayor’s Staff:   None  
 
Council Members:  LeAnna Cumber, District 5    
 
DIA Staff:  Lori Boyer, Chief Executive Officer; Steve Kelley, Director of Development; John 
Crescimbeni, Contract and, Regulatory Compliance Manager; Guy Parola, Operations Manager; 
Lori Radcliffe-Meyers, Redevelopment Coordinator; Ina Mezini, Marketing and Communications 
Specialist; and Karen Underwood-Eiland, Assistant 
 
Office of General Counsel: John Sawyer, Esq.   
 
CALL TO ORDER: Chairman Moody called to order the Downtown Investment Authority Board 
Meeting at 3:08 p.m. 
 
IV. DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY MEETING   
 
A. AUGUST 19, 2020, DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY BOARD  
            MEETING APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES.  

Motion: Board Member Worsham moved to approve the August 19, 2020 DIA Board 
Meeting Minutes 
Seconded: Board Member Citrano  

 
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay: 0  Abstain: 0 

 
THE MOTION PASSED UNANIMOUSLY 8-0-0  
 
  
 
 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
DIA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at p.m.   
Page 2 of 5  

 
B.         RESOLUTION 2020-09-04:  OFF-STREET PARKING RATES   

RESOLUTION 2020-09-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) AND 
THE CITY’S PUBLIC PARKING OFFICER TO IMPLEMENT AN 
INCREASE IN OFF STREET PARKING RATES; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CEO Boyer brought fourth Resolution 2020-09-04 and provided a summary.  The Downtown 
Investment Authority recommends adoption and implementation as of October 1, 2020, the revised 
September 2020 off-street parking rate schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 
The Downtown Investment Authority instructs its CEO, through the office of Public Parking, to 
forward to City Council and each council member as required by Ordinance the revised rate 
schedule. 
 
The committee’s recommendations were to get the rates consistent with the private rates in the lot 
surrounding and the available lots and facilities’ garages. The committee recommended approval of 
the rate schedule and change.   
 
The board discussed the resolution.  
 

Motion: Board Member Gillam moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-04, as presented. 
Seconded: Board Member Adams     
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay:  0 Abstain: 0 

            
THE MOTION PASSED 8-0-0.  
 
C.   RESOLUTION 2020-09-05:  OFF-STREET PARKING DISCOUNTS  

RESOLUTION 2020-09-05 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
(“DIA”) INSTRUCTING ITS CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) AND 
THE CITY’S PUBLIC PARKING OFFICER TO EXTEND TEMPORARILY, 
AND BY YEAR-END PHASE OUT, OFF STREET PARKING DISCOUNTS 
IN PUBLIC OFF STREET PARKING FACILITIES; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 



Downtown Investment Authority 
DIA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at p.m.   
Page 3 of 5  

 
CEO Boyer brought fourth Resolution 2020-09-05.  The Downtown Investment Authority 
recommends adopting and implementing the discount phase-out, as described in Exhibit A.  
 
In recognition of the hardships that COVID-19 has imposed on individuals, it was the committee’s 
recommendation to phase out the discount over the last year over this coming year.  The Mayor’s 
administration asked to extend the employee discount for a full year and go through City Council.  
 
This recommendation is that we immediately eliminate any space reservations as an option because 
we cannot afford to hold spaces out of the supply and out of the market for amounts of $4.00.  
 
Discussion from the Board.   
Board Member Ward addressed concerns relating to city employee discounts and the discounts 
extended to particular landlords.    
Council Member Cumber agreed that there is no need to extend discounts and prefer the market to 
take over.  
Board Member Gillam recognized the concerns noted and pointed it that it’s a short extension in a 
difficult time.  

Motion: Board Member Gibbs moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-05, as presented. 
Seconded: Board Member Adams     
Vote:  Aye: 7  Nay:  1 (Ward)  Abstain: 0 

            
THE MOTION PASSED 7-1-0.  
D.   RESOLUTION 2020-09-07: CONTRIBUTION FOR LIVE DOWNTOWN JAX  
             WEBSITE AND MARKTING  

RESOLUTION 2020-09-07 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 
AUTHORIZING THE CONTRIBUTION OF TEN THOUSAND AND NO/100 
DOLLARS ($10,000.) TO DOWNTOWN VISION INC. IN SUPPORT OF VARIOUS 
MARKETING EFFORTS THAT FURTHER INVESTMENT IN DOWNTOWN AND 
ENCOURAGE AND SUPPORT DIA’S EFFORTS TO INCREASE RESIDENCY IN 
DOWNTOWN; INSTRUCTING THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”) TO 
TAKE ALL NECESSARY ACTION TO EFFECTUATE THE PURPOSES OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
CEO Boyer presented a summary of Resolution 2020-09-07.  The DIA approves the donation of 
$10,000.00 to Downtown Vision Inc. in support of its marketing efforts for Downtown, fully 
outlined in the term sheet attached hereto as Exhibit 1.  
 
The board provided comments.  



Downtown Investment Authority 
DIA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at p.m.   
Page 4 of 5  

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-07, as presented. 
Seconded: Board Member Gibbs      
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay:  0 Abstain: 0 

            
THE MOTION PASSED 8-0-0.  
E.   RESOLUTION 2020-09-09: RECOGNIZING THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF KAREN  

UNDERWOOD-EILAND  
 

RESOLUTION 2020-09-09 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY COMMENDING 
AND RECOGNIZING THE CONTRIBUTIONS OF KAREN UNDERWOOD TO THE 
DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) AND FOR HER DEDICATION AND 
SERVICE IN PROMOTING THE SUCCESSFUL REVITALIZATION AND 
REDEVELOPMENT OF DOWNTOWN JACKSONVILLE. 

Motion: Board Member Froats moved to approve Resolution 2020-09-09, as presented. 
Seconded: Board Member Gibbs      
Vote:  Aye: 8  Nay:  0 Abstain: 0 

 
V.       CEO INFORMATIONAL BRIEFING CHAIRMAN REPORT  
CEO Boyer reported about the Historic Preservation program that was approved by the committee. 
She noted that Ordinance 2020-0527 legislation is now going through City Council, and staff will 
be working with Council Member Cumber to improve some language tweaks.   
CEO Boyer reported that we have several professional service contracts that are in various stages of 
consideration.  
A new video is being produced showing all of the capital improvement projects implemented when 
built out and what the latest developments resemble.  
Emerald Trail  
Two-Way Street design RFP has been scored and in public works to be awarded.  
Procurement received three (3) bids today on the BID and CRA.  Chairman Moody and Lori Boyer 
will be scoring those over the weekend to get them awarded. 
The Market Feasibility Study is starting work this fall to complete the first quarter of 2020.  
Available information for BID and CRA Update.  
CEO Boyer updated the board on the street meter rates. Now that we are implementing the off-
street rates, we will have to balance the two and be taken up in November. The Parking kiosk 
implementing on the south bank on river Place Boulevard.  
Ina Mezini provided a presentation on the status of the DIA marketing brochures.   
  



Downtown Investment Authority 
DIA Meeting Minutes – Wednesday, September 16, 2020 at p.m.   
Page 5 of 5  

V. CHAIRMAN REPORT 
Chairman Moody shared an update of an editorial entitled Downtown progress below:  
 

• The Lofts of Jefferson Street 
• River place Boulevard Road Diet 
• The FIFA headquarters construction 
• Brooklyn jug handle 
• Brooklyn Vista  
• JEA Headquarters  
• Marriott residential force 
• Emerald Trail 
• Park Street Road Diet 
• Ambassador Hotel 
• Bread and Board  
• The District 
• The Doro project 
• The Landing site RFP  
• Two-way street conversion  
• Lift Every voice park 
• Former Independent Life Building 
• Jones Brothers Furniture  
• The Maritime 618 Restaurant 

 
Chairman Moody requested the board to listen to the group presenting Spandrel regarding the 
convention site.  He will invite the entire board to attend on Thursday, September 24, 2020, or 
Wednesday, September 30.   
 
Board Member Gibbs thanked the DVI and staff for providing the beautiful zoom backdrops.  
 
VI. ADJOURN  
 
ADJOURNMENT: Chairman Moody adjourned the meeting at 3:55 p.m. 
 

The written minutes for this meeting are only an overview of what was discussed.  For verbatim 
comments of this meeting, a recording or transcript is available upon request.  Please contact 

Karen Underwood-Eiland, at (904) 255-5302.  



TAB IV.B 

Resolution 2020-10-03: Allocation of Development Rights - Doro 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-03 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY (“DIA”) 
ALLOCATING UP TO ONE HUNDRED FORTY-FOUR (144) UNITS OF MULTI-
FAMILY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS AND UP TO TEN THOUSAND (10,000) 
SQUARE FEET OF COMMERCIAL RETAIL DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS FROM 
THE NORTHSIDE EAST COMPONENT AREA OF THE CONSOLIDATED 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOMPENT OF REGIONAL IMPACT (“DRI”) TO 
JACKSONVILLE PROPERTIES I, LLC, FOR USE ON DUVAL COUNTY TAX 
PARCELS 131133 0000, 131134 0000, 131135 0000, AND 131136 0000 
(“PROPERTY”); AUTHORIZING THE DIA CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO 
EXECUTE ANY CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS AND OTHERWISE TAKE 
ALL NECESSARY ACTION IN CONNECTION THEREWITH TO EFFECTUATE 
THE PURPOSES OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance 2014-0560-E, DIA is the “Master Developer” with 

respect to the Consolidated Downtown Development of Regional Impact (“DRI”) Development 
Order; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to construct a mixed- use development consisting of 

two hundred forty-seven (247) multi-family units and over nine thousand (9,000) square feet of 
commercial retail / restaurant in the Sports and Entertainment District; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Property consists of a block bound to the north by Adams Street, the 

south by Forsyth Street (a now closed right-of-way), the east by A Philip Randolph Boulevard, 
and the west by Lafayette street; and  

 
WHEREAS, the above described Property has, according to Duval County Property 

Appraiser property record cards, buildings totaling 56,140 square feet of warehouse / light 
industrial; and 

 
WHEREAS, the abovementioned warehouse/light industrial development are included as 

existing square footages within the Consolidated Downtown DRI, and, therefore, may be 
converted into multi-family units utilizing the Land Use Transportation/Trade-Off Matrix 
contained within the Consolidated Downtown DRI; and 

 
WHEREAS, utilizing the Land Use Transportation/Trade-Off Matrix contained within the 

Consolidated Downtown DRI, the 56,140 square feet of existing warehouse/light industrial equates 
to one hundred three (103) multifamily units of development rights; and  

 
WHEREAS, in addition to the one hundred three (103) multifamily units of development 

rights above, the DIA desires to allocate an additional one hundred forty-four (144) multifamily 
units of development rights for a total of two hundred forty-seven (247) multifamily development 
rights; and  

 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-03 
PAGE 2 OF 3 
 

WHEREAS, in addition to the abovementioned multifamily development rights 
allocation, the DIA desires to allocate up to ten thousand (10,000) square feet of commercial retail 
/ restaurant development rights,  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Downtown Investment Authority: 
 
Section 1. The DIA finds that the recitals set forth above are true and correct and are 

incorporated herein by this reference.   
 
Section 2. The DIA allocates up to one hundred three (103) multifamily units and up 

to ten thousand (10,000) square feet of commercial retail / restaurant development rights from the 
Northeast Component Area of the Consolidated Downtown Development of Regional Impact. 

 
Section 3. The DIA finds that this resolution and the allocation of development rights 

furthers the following Redevelopment Goals and Strategic Objectives within the Northbank 
Downtown Community Redevelopment Area Plan: 

 
Redevelopment Goal 2: Increase rental and owner-occupied housing downtown, targeting 
key demographic groups seeking a more urban lifestyle.   
 

Strategic Objective: Actively pursue a minimum of 3,850 built and occupied multi-
family dwelling units by 2025; and strive to induce construction of 350 multi-family 
dwelling units per year. 

 
Redevelopment Goal No. 4: Improve walkability/bikeability and connectivity to adjacent 
neighborhoods and the St. Johns River while creating highly walkable nodes. 
 

Strategic Objective: Create a mixture of uses so that housing, activities, retail and 
other businesses are within useful walking distance. 

 
Section 4. In the event that Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, fails to obtain a permit for 

vertical construction either (a) within six (6) months following execution of a Redevelopment 
Agreement or, (b) if a Redevelopment Agreement is not executed within twelve (12) months of 
the effective date of this Resolution, this Resolution and the allocation of development rights will 
become null and void. The deadlines within this Section 4 may be extended by the DIA Chief 
Executive Officer for up to an additional six (6) months at their sole discretion.   

 
Section 5. In the event that Jacksonville Properties I, LLC, fails to complete 

construction, as evidenced by the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy or its functional 
equivalent, within twenty-four (24) months from either (a) execution of a Redevelopment 
Agreement, or (b) if a Redevelopment Agreement is not executed within twenty-four (24) months 
of the effective date of this Resolution, this Resolution and the allocation of development rights 
will become null and void. The deadlines within this Section 5 may be extended by the DIA Chief 
Executive Officer for up to an additional six (6) months at their sole discretion.   

 
 



RESOLUTION 2020-10-03 
PAGE 3 OF 3 
 

Section 6. This Allocation of Development Rights may be assigned by Jacksonville 
Properties I, LLC, upon written authorization of the DIA Chief Executive Officer. Such written 
authorization of the DIA Chief Executive Officer shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

 
 Section 7. The DIA Chief Executive Officer is authorized to execute any contracts and 
documents and otherwise take all necessary action in connection therewith to effectuate the 
purposes of this resolution. 
 

Section 8. This Resolution 2020-10-03 shall become effective on the date it is signed 
by the Chair of the DIA Board. 

 
 
WITNESS:      DOWNTOWN INVESTMENT AUTHORITY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
______________________            

Ron Moody, Chairman  Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VOTE:  In Favor: ________ Opposed:  _________ Abstained: _______ 
 
 


	20201021_DIA Board Meeting Agenda.pdf
	MEMBERS:

	Blank Page
	Doro Staff Report SUPPLEMENT INFORMATION.pdf
	Downtown Investment Authority
	SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
	The Doro
	October 13, 2020

	Blank Page
	RCBC Proposal Staff Report SUPPLEMENT INFORMATION.pdf
	Downtown Investment Authority
	SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
	River City Brewing Company
	October 13, 2020




